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Frequently Asked Questions

Service Area Questions
Can I apply for a different coverage area than the ones listed in Appendix A?

Yes, but you may have to revise your proposal if you do not have the highest score for part or all of your application. The following appears on page 19 of the Request for Application (RFA):
“We encourage applicants to use the proposed service areas detailed in the RFA Appendix, however, applicants may include additional areas within the same State or another State, provided the application offers a strong supporting statement. When preparing your application, please remember that SSA shall not award any applicant entity more than $300,000.00 in funding from this Opportunity. This restriction includes any funding allotments planned for subcontractor arrangements with other awardees.
We recognize that state agencies, municipalities, or other organizations may be restricted from providing services across state, city, or other identified borders. If this is the case for an applicant, we recommend providing an explanation of this limitation as part of the application narrative. If the applicant has the best proposal for the area, we will try to accommodate those limitations.  If the application results in an award of a greater or lesser service area, the successful applicant may need to submit a new budget prior to the award.

Providing distance-based services permits flexibility not possible in earlier solicitations for WIPA cooperative agreements. In addition to the preferred service area, we invite applicants to indicate a willingness to expand their service area if they win the award or serve other areas across the country should they not be awarded their selected service area. Offering this flexibility to serve a different area may increase the likelihood of an award. We would approach the highest scoring applicants indicating this flexibility first. If the new service area serves a disability population that is smaller or larger than the one the applicant previously proposed, the applicant will need to submit a revised budget for the new cooperative agreement award amount.”

I see the Appendix has a list of counties or incorporated cities that a cooperative agreement will serve. Is it possible to get a map?
Yes. If applicants wish to have a map of a prospective service area, please make a request to SSA_TA@grantreview.org. Please specify the state or states that interest you.

Why did Social Security change the service areas?
Periodically, we must compete the cooperative agreement awards. When we did the distribution of projects this time, we changed the territories for three reasons:
A. Every applicant, whether or not they have previously been a WIPA project, needs an equal chance of winning the award. 
B. We must base the distribution of service areas and funding on the disability population in a given area. Demographic shifts in population also shift the population numbers for disability beneficiaries, so some changes occur due to those shifts.
C. We combined some states, and increased service areas in order to increase the amount of the awards we offer. We have strict statutory requirements that limit the overall funding and the amount of the award. By combining the populations of several smaller areas, we were able to offer potential awardees a larger funding amount, in spite of the fact that we do not have an increased budget for the cooperative agreements.

Can you provide a list of projects that currently cover the area I am considering?

The following lists all of the current awardees:

	Organization 
	Service Area(s)

	Alabama Department of Rehabilitation Services
	Entire state of Alabama

	University of Alaska Anchorage
	Entire state of Alaska

	Arizona Bridge to Independent Living
	Entire state of Arizona

	Sources for Community Independent Living Services
	Entire state of Arkansas

	Verdugo Workforce Investment Board
	Part of LA county, and additional counties bordering LA County

	Project Independence
	Area north of San Diego (Disability Rights Network's territory) and east of Los Angeles, including Orange County

	Managed Career Solutions Inc.
	Most of LA County

	Disability Rights California
	Southernmost counties in California, including San Diego

	Disability Resource Agency for Independent Living
	Central California, including Fresno and the Central Valley

	Crossroads Diversified Services
	Northern counties in California, including Sacramento

	Center for Independence of Individuals with Disabilities
	Central California including San Francisco and coastal counties south of San Francisco

	Ability Connection Colorado
	Entire state of Colorado

	Department of Rehabilitation Services
	Entire state of Connecticut

	Opportunity Development Inc.
	Northern Florida counties (panhandle), including the cities of Jacksonville and Tallahassee

	Keys Advocacy Center Inc.
	Southernmost Florida counties, including the cities of Miami, Ft. Lauderdale, and Ft. Myers, as well as the Florida Keys

	Brevard Achievement Center Inc.
	East-central Florida counties, including the city of Orlando

	Abilities Inc. of Florida
	West-central Florida counties, including the cities of Tampa and St. Petersburg

	Shepherd Center Inc.
	Northwest counties, including the city of Atlanta

	Department of Human Services-GVRA
	Southern and northeastern counties, including the cities of Augusta and Savannah

	University of Hawaii
	Entire state of Hawaii--all islands

	Illinois Assistive Technology Program
	All of Illinois except for the City of Chicago

	City of Chicago Mayor's Office for People with Disabilities
	City of Chicago only

	Southern Indiana Resource Solutions Inc.
	Southern 1/3 of Indiana, including Evansville

	Aspire Indiana Inc.
	Northern and central Indiana, including Indianapolis, Gary, and Ft. Wayne

	Disability Rights Iowa
	Entire state of Iowa 

	Cerebral Palsy Research Foundation of Kansas Inc.
	Entire state of Kansas

	Goodwill Industries of Kentucky Inc.
	Counties in the eastern half of Kentucky, including the cities of Lexington and Richmond

	Center for Accessible Living Inc.
	Counties in the western half of Kentucky, including the cities of Louisville, Bowling Green, and Frankfort

	Louisiana State University Health Sciences Center-N.O.
	Northern and central counties of Louisiana, including the cities of Baton Rouge and Shreveport

	Advocacy Center
	Southern coastal counties, and the eastern counties of Louisiana except the area around Baton Rouge.  It includes the city of New Orleans

	Maine Medical Center
	Entire state of Maine

	Independence Now Inc.
	Entire state of Maryland

	University of Massachusetts Medical School
	The counties of central and western Massachusetts, including the cities of Worcester and Springfield

	Massachusetts Rehabilitation Commission
	The east coast counties of Massachusetts, including the city of Boston, Cape Cod, and Dukes and Nantucket islands

	United Cerebral Palsy of Michigan
	Northern Michigan and the Upper Peninsula, including Traverse City and Superior

	United Cerebral Palsy Association of Metropolitan Detroit
	Three counties in southeastern Michigan, including Detroit

	The ARC of Michigan Inc.
	Southern and central Michigan, including Grand Rapids, Lansing, and Saginaw

	Goodwill Industries Inc.
	Entire state of Minnesota

	Mississippi Department of Rehabilitation Services
	Entire state of Mississippi

	Paraquad Inc
	Eastern half of Missouri, including the city of St. Louis

	Missouri Protection & Advocacy Services
	Western half of the state, as well as northern counties bordering Illinois, including Kansas City

	Montana State University Billings^
	Entire states of Montana and Idaho

	Easter Seals Society of Nebraska Inc.
	Entire state of Nebraska

	Nevada Disability Advocacy & Law Center
	Entire state of Nevada

	Granite State Independent Living
	Entire state of New Hampshire

	Full Circle Employment Solutions LLC^
	Entire state of Delaware and southern part of New Jersey, including Atlantic City

	Epilepsy Foundation of  New Jersey-FRN
	Northern and Central New Jersey, including Newark

	Southern Nevada Center for Independent Living
	Entire state of New Mexico

	Resource Center for Independent Living Inc.
	Eastern counties of Upstate New York, including the cities of Kingston, Albany, Schenectady, Oneida, and Lake Placid

	Neighborhood Legal Services Inc.
	Western New York, including the cities of Buffalo, Rochester, Ithaca, and Niagara Falls

	Hostos Community College-RF
	New York (Manhattan) and the Bronx

	Goodwill of Greater NY and Northern NJ
	Richmond (Staten Island) and Kings counties, New York

	Abilities Inc.
	Queens and Long Island (Nassau, Suffolk), and Westchester County, New York

	North Carolina Department of Health and Human Services
	Western 2/3 of North Carolina, including Charlotte and Asheville

	Employment Source Incorporated
	Eastern 1/3 of North Carolina, including Raleigh, Durham, and the Outer Banks

	Rehab Services, Inc.
	Entire state of North Dakota

	Southeast Inc.
	Central and southeastern Ohio, including Columbus and Akron

	Ohio Disability Rights Law and Policy Center
	Area forms  a band around the western and northern borders of Ohio, including Toledo and Cleveland

	Legal Aid Society of Cincinnati
	Southwestern corner of the state, including Cincinnati.

	Board of Regents, The University of Oklahoma
	Entire state of Oklahoma

	Disability Rights Oregon^
	Entire state of Oregon and part of southern Washington along the Oregon border, including Walla Walla

	Goodwill Keystone Area
	Central and eastern Pennsylvania, including Harrisburg and Allentown

	Disability Rights Network of Pennsylvania
	Southeastern Pennsylvania, including Philadelphia

	AHEDD
	Western Pennsylvania, including Pittsburgh and Erie

	Movimiento Para el Alcance de Vida Independiente^
	Entire territories of Puerto Rico and Virgin Islands--all islands

	Rhode Island College
	Entire state of Rhode Island

	Walton Options for Independent Living Inc
	Entire state of South Carolina

	Black Hills Special Services Cooperative
	Entire state  of South Dakota

	Tennessee Disability Coalition
	Eastern half of Tennessee, including the cities of Chattanooga, Knoxville, and Johnson City

	Center for Independent Living of Middle Tennessee
	Western half of Tennessee, including the cities of Memphis, Jackson, and Nashville

	Imagine Enterprises Inc.^
	Guam, Northern Mariana Islands, American Samoa and Northwestern Texas

	Easter Seals of North Texas
	Dallas Metropolitan area in the northeast-central part of Texas, including the cities of Dallas, Ft. Worth, and McKinney

	Crockett Resource Center for Independent Living Inc.
	Counties in eastern and southern Texas along the coast, including the cities of Corpus Christi, Austin, Killeen, and Beaumont

	CBFL Houston Center for Independent Living
	Houston Metropolitan area in the southeastern corner of Texas, including the cities of Houston and Galveston

	ARCIL Inc.
	Counties in south-central and the southern tip of Texas, bordering Mexico, and including cities of San Antonio, McAllen, and Brownsville

	Utah State Office of Education
	Entire state of Utah

	Vermont Agency of Human Services
	Entire state of Vermont

	Virginia Association of Community Rehab Programs
	Northern, western, and central Virginia including Alexandria, Arlington, Richmond, and Roanoke

	Endependence Center Inc.^
	Washington DC and part of southeast Virginia along the coast, including Norfolk, Virginia Beach, and Newport News

	HIP of Spokane County
	Washington north of the Oregon border, including Seattle, Tacoma, Olympia, and Spokane

	West Virginia Department of Rehabilitation Service
	Entire state of West Virginia

	Employment Resources Inc.
	Entire state of Wisconsin

	Centrum for Disability Services
	Entire state of Wyoming



Is it possible for one organization to submit proposals for 2 separate service areas within the same grouping?  
Yes, you may submit proposals for 2 separate areas within the same grouping. If your intention is to provide services in one of the service areas, and you just want to let us know you would take the second area if you did not receive the first choice, please clearly indicate this. If your intention is to serve two separate areas, please be aware funding for one organization may not exceed $300,000. 
Can our organization apply to serve more than one service area, as a primary cooperative agreement holder, or as a subcontractor?
You should select one service area as your first choice, and indicate in your proposal that you are willing to cover a different area if you do not win the area you prefer. If you are planning to subcontract, keep in mind that the total award for any one entity may not exceed $300,000.00, including subcontract awards to that entity.
The Application Process

1. Is there a list I can subscribe to that will give me updates on the RFA?
No, the best place to go for announcements, frequently asked questions, and updates is www.ssa.gov/work/WIPA.

When is the application due?
You must submit your application here: https://apply07.grants.gov/apply/login.faces?userType=applicant&amp&cleanSession=1 no later than 5:00 PM on Monday April 19, 2021.

If Social Security awards us a WIPA cooperative agreement, how long will we provide services?
The initial award funds services from July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022. Social Security will renew this cooperative agreement annually through June 30, 2026 pending availability of funding and successful performance.
 I don’t see mention of a cost-share in this application, but the Work Incentives Planning and Assistance awards used to have a 5% cost-share, or match from other non-federal funding. Is there a cost-share requirement in this application?
No. We eliminated the cost-share requirements for this application. 
 When should I hear about the success of my application?
If your application is successful, you should receive notice of an award on or before June 30, 2021. We will notify unsuccessful applicants shortly after that date. 
Questions About the Work Incentives Planning and Assistance Program 
1. We have not provided services under WIPA funding previously. Will we have an opportunity to conduct start-up activities after Social Security makes the award?
Yes, we anticipate that Social Security will award some organizations that have not previously served under WIPA cooperative agreements. We recognize it will take some time for these projects to have fully trained and certified staff, as well as staff whom successfully meet Social Security’s suitability requirements.
What are Social Security’s suitability requirements?
In order to serve our beneficiaries, all staff with access to beneficiary information must complete a suitability application and receive a determination of suitable for a moderate risk position, called Tier II suitability. If you have received a suitable determination at the moderate risk level within the past few years, and you are still working with the organization that requested that clearance, you may be able to “roll over” that suitability determination to the new cooperative agreement via a simple request. Due to new regulations, some individual staff who previously obtained moderate risk suitability may need to reapply to renew their suitability. We will provide additional information to successful applicants.  
I work for an agency that serves a specific disability population. If SSA awards my agency the cooperative agreement, will I be able to serve just the people who fit within my agency’s mission?
Grantees must serve anyone within their service area who meets the eligibility requirements listed in the Request for Application.
Didn’t find your answer? Send additional questions to SSA_TA@grantreview.org.
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